




































































































Plan Commission Special Exception Permit Review 
 
A special exception shall not be granted unless the applicant demonstrates that the building or 
buildings on the lot that exceed the floor area  and height limit will meet the conditions set forth 
in Sec. 10-1-52 of this Code.  For purposes of this section references to “use” or “conditional 
use” in Sec. 10-1-52 shall be deemed to be references to the building or buildings for which a 
special exception is requested. The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with the following: 
 
Property: 
Weygandt, Jerry & Enid 
3220 Lake Mendota Drive 
Madison, WI 53705 
 
 

1. The uses, values, views, vistas and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood 
for purposes already established shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially 
impaired or be diminished by the special exception.  

 
Finding:  True 
  
   

2. The special exception will not substantially impair an adequate supply of light and air 
to adjacent property, or increase the danger of fire within the neighborhood.  

 
Finding:  True 
   
 

3. The special exception will not substantially increase erosion; 
 
Finding:  True 
 
 

4. The special exception will not substantially cause the flow of surface water to be 
changed so as to adversely affect other lots or the natural environment. 

 
Finding:  True 
 

5. The special exception will not substantially adversely affect infiltration of surface 
water into the ground. 

 
Finding:  True 
 

 1



 
6. The special exception will not substantially adversely affect access to property or 

structures by fire fighters and other emergency personnel. 
 
Finding:  True, may improve it. 
 
 
 
The Plan Commission may consider the following: 
   

1. If other residences along the same side of the street adjoining the residence have 
similar floor areas: 

     Yes 
 

2. If the lot has large trees and/or mature landscaping which obscures the scale of the 
residence. 

     Yes 
 

3. If the property has unique topographic features which reduce the scale of the 
residence:  

     True; slopes down to the lake. 
 

4. If the residence setback from the public street is significantly greater than minimum 
requirements: 

     Yes 
 

 

The Plan Commission shall review the application according to the standards below.  No 
application shall be recommended for approval by the Plan Commission unless it finds that 
the following are met:   

 

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special exception will not be 
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general 
welfare. 

Finding: True 

 

2. That the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood for 
purposes already permitted shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially impaired 
or diminished by the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special exception 
and the proposed special exception is compatible with the use of adjacent land. 

Finding:  True 

 

 2



3. That the establishment of the special exception will not impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted 
in the district, and will not be contrary to an adopted comprehensive plan of the 
Village. 

Finding:  True 

 

4. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary site improvements 
have been, are being or will be provided. 

Finding:  True 

 

5. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special exception is unlikely 
to increase the level of traffic congestion or reduce the level of safety at any point on 
the public streets.  

Finding:  True 

 

6. That the special exception shall conform to all applicable regulations of the district in 
which it is located. 

Finding: True, subject to Board consideration of the applicant’s pending conditional 
use permit request. 

 
7. That the special exception does not violate flood plain regulations governing the site. 

Finding: True 

 
8. That, when applying the above standards to any new construction of a building, or an 

addition to an existing building, the Plan Commission and Board shall bear in mind 
the statement of purpose for the zoning district such that the proposed building or 
addition at its location does not defeat the purposes and objectives of the zoning 
district. 

Finding:  True 

 
 

The Plan Commission shall also evaluate the effect of the special exception upon: 

• The maintenance of safe and healthful conditions. 

Finding: N/A 

 

• The prevention and control of water pollution including sedimentation. 

Finding:  N/A 

 3



 

• Existing topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover on the site. 

Finding:  N/A 

 

 

• The location of the site with respect to floodplains and floodways of rivers and 
streams. 

Finding:  N/A 

 

• The erosion potential of the site based upon degree and direction of slope, soil type 
and vegetative cover. 

Finding:  N/A 

 

• The location of the site with respect to existing or future access roads. 

Finding:  N/A 

 
• The need of the proposed use for a shoreland location. 

Finding:  N/A 

 

• Its compatibility with uses on adjacent land. 

Finding: Compatible. 

 

 

Regarding the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special exception applied 
for, the Plan Commission shall specify whatever reasonable conditions it deems necessary 
and appropriate to fulfill the intent of this Chapter.  The conditions may include 
requirements relating to any of the following: 

 

• Landscaping conditions required: 

   Adherence to Village Stormwater Ordinance 
 

• Type of construction conditions required: 

   Adherence to Village Erosion Control Ordinance 
 

 4



 5

• Construction commencement and completion dates  required: 

   N/A 
 

• Surety  required: 

   N/A 
 

• Lighting required: 

   Adherence to Village Dark Sky (Regulated Illumination) Ordinance 
 

• Fencing required 

   N/A 
 

• Deed restrictions required: 

   N/A 
 

• Access restrictions required: 

   N/A 
 

• Setbacks and yards required: 

   N/A 
 

• Planting screens required: 

   N/A 
 

• Modifications in parking required: 

   N/A, parking of construction vehicles on Lake Mendota Drive. 
 

• Architecture, exterior colors and exterior materials required: 

   N/A 
 

 

Any other requirements necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of the Zoning Code of the 
Village of Shorewood Hills conditions required: 

 
 



















Plan Commission Conditional Use Permit Review Lake Mendota 
Drive Projects 

 
The Plan Commission shall forward its written advisory recommendation to the Village Board 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of the application from the Zoning Administrator.  The Plan 
Commission shall recommend approval, approval subject to specified conditions, or denial.  A 
recommendation for denial shall include the reasons, including which standards contained in the 
Plan Commission review are found not to be met. 

Property: 
Weygandt, Jerry & Enid 
3220 Lake Mendota Drive 
Madison, WI 53705 
 

A conditional use shall be approved under this paragraph only if the applicant 
demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence the following: 
 

1. Views of Lake Mendota from points off the lot on which the development or excavation 
proposed will not be adversely affected.  True 

 
2. Erosion will not be increased.  True 

 
3. The flow of surface water will not be changed so as to adversely affect other lots, the lake 

and other aspects of the natural environment.  True 
 

4. Infiltration of surface water into the ground will not be adversely affected.  True 
 

5.   Access to properties and structures by firefighters and other emergency personnel will not 
be  adversely effected: 

True, may be improved. 

The Plan Commission shall review the application according to the standards below.  No 
application shall be recommended for approval by the Plan Commission unless it finds that 
the following conditions are met:   

 

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use will not be 
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general 
welfare. 

Finding:  True 

 1



 

2. That the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood for 
purposes already permitted shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially impaired 
or diminished by the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use 
and the proposed use is compatible with the use of adjacent land. 

Finding:  True 

 
3. That the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and 

orderly development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses 
permitted in the district, and will not be contrary to an adopted comprehensive plan 
of the Village. 

Finding:  True 

 
4. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary site 

improvements have been, are being or will be provided. 

Finding:  True 

 

5. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use is unlikely 
to increase the level of traffic congestion or reduce the level of safety at any point 
on the public streets.  

Finding:  True 

 
6. That the conditional use shall conform to all applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located. 

Finding: 1) This proposal does not conform to the Village’s lake setback line 
ordinance and the Board will need to approve an exception. 

 2) True. Because the resident’s house is so close to Lake Mendota Drive, it 
has such an extensive backyard in length, and the house to the west is so 
much closer to the lake, the Plan Commission believes the exception is minor. 

 
7. That the conditional use does not violate flood plain regulations governing the site. 

Finding:  True 

 
8. That, when applying the above standards to any new construction of a building, or 

an addition to an existing building, the Plan Commission and Board shall bear in 
mind the statement of purpose for the zoning district such that the proposed 
building or addition at its location does not defeat the purposes and objectives of 
the zoning district. 

Finding:  True 

 2



 
The Plan Commission shall also evaluate the effect of the proposed conditional use 
upon: 

• The maintenance of safe and healthful conditions. 

Finding:  True 

 

• The prevention and control of water pollution including sedimentation. 

Finding:  True 

 

• Existing topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover on the site. 

Finding:  True 

 

• The location of the site with respect to floodplains and floodways of rivers and 
streams. 

Finding:  True 

 

• The erosion potential of the site based upon degree and direction of slope, soil type 
and vegetative cover. 

Finding:  True 

 

• The location of the site with respect to existing or future access roads. 

Finding:  True 

 
• The need of the proposed use for a shoreland location. 

Finding:  True 

 

• Its compatibility with uses on adjacent land. 

Finding:  True 

 3



 4

 

• Any other requirements necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of the Zoning 
Code of the Village of Shorewood Hills conditions required: 

Compliance with: 

o Stormwater Management Ordinance 

o Erosion Control Ordinance 

o Noise Ordinance 

o Dark Sky (Regulated Illumination) Ordinance 
 









































































Recreation Committee Minutes 
Village of Shorewood Hills 

Wednesday, June 10, 2015 
 

1. Called to Order at 7:25 p.m.:  Trustee Anne Readel called the meeting to order at 7:25 
pm.  

a. Roll Call:  Committee Members Present:  Chair/Village Trustee Anne Readel, 
Janet McClain, Andy Alexander, Santhia Brandt, Lori DiPrete Brown 

b. Others Present:  Village Deputy Clerk Karla Enders 

2. Meeting Notice:  K. Enders confirmed that the meeting had been properly posed in 
compliance with open meeting laws.  

3. Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes:  The Committee removed draft minutes from the 
February 11, 2015 Recreation Committee meeting but indicated they had already been 
approved.  

4. Discussion of Parent Volunteers for Four Corners and Land Recreation Programs: 
the Committee noted that it has become increasingly difficult to attract parent volunteers 
for the Four Corners and Land Recreation programs.  The Committee discussed potential 
solutions for attracting parent volunteers.  The Committee noted that moving forward, it 
will be important for the Village to facilitate and update a binder with instructions for 
parent volunteers.   

a. Fee Waiver: The Committee discussed the possibility of offering a fee waiver for 
a child of parent volunteers.  It was noted that a fee waiver could help attract 
parent volunteers but that it would be important to ensure that a fee waiver did not 
unduly burden program participants.   The Committee noted that a fee waiver 
policy could be beneficial to not only the Four Corners and Land Recreation 
Programs, but other programs that were struggling to attract volunteers.  The 
Committee did not want to invest time on developing a proposed fee waiver 
policy unless the Board was supportive.  Motion for permission from the Board 
of Trustees for the Recreation Committee to develop a policy to provide a fee 
waiver for volunteers.  The specifics would be developed with consultation 
with volunteers and limited in scope to not unduly burden paying program 
participants.  L. DiPrete Brown moved; A. Readel seconded the motion.  Motion 
passed unanimously.  

b. Hiring Process:  The Committee discussed difficulties with the current hiring 
process this year.  Many individuals had already accepted other employment 
offers by the time the programs were able to make an employment offer.  The 
Committee discussed possibilities for streamlining the hiring process, including 
the possibility that Committees could extend offers of employment without Board 
approval.  Motion that if there are no legal impediments, the Recreation 

- 1 - 



- 2 - 

Committee would like to reassign authority for the hiring of recreational 
program emplolyees to the Recreation Committee and not the Board.  L. 
DiPrete Brown moved; J. McClain seconded the motion.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  

5. Discussion of Community Uses for Fire Station:  The Committee noted that 
discussions have been ongoing for potential community uses for the Fire Station.  The 
space may be useful for recreation programs, such as Land Recreation and Four Corners, 
in the event of inclement weather.  S. Brandt proposed that part of the space be used for a 
library.  She noted that a number of individuals were interested in having a library in 
Shorewood Hills and that it was not possible in the Village Hall.  However, it was noted 
that someone would need to keep hours as Village buildings have experienced vandalism 
in the past.  

6. Identification of Future Agenda Items: 

a. Additional recreation programs for all ages 
b. Uses for Village community spaces 
c. Heiden House use policy 
d. Document template for new program proposals 
e. Tennis court reservation system 

 
7. Adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 

 





MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
Public Works Committee 
Tuesday, May 11, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 
Village Hall, 810 Shorewood Boulevard 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. 
Members present were Chair Mark Lederer, Felice Borisy Rudin, Jim Guither and Rick Chappel. 
Village Engineer Brian Berquist, Crew Chief John Mitmoen and Karl Frantz ,Village 
Administrator  
Compliance with the open meeting law was noted.  
 
On site walk and discussion regarding street conditions on Sunset and Blackhawk Drive 
and possible actions relating to 2015 street improvement projects - Committee members and 
staff walked the Sunset Blackhawk loop with roughly ten area residents, Village Engineer 
Berquist led the walk and responded to various questions. The major concern was about 
Blackhawk and Sunset not being included in the project. Questions arose regarding various site 
specific road conditions and causes and solutions to problems. For the majority of the walk small 
groups of residents and committee members and staff held discussions  
 
Reconvene at Village Hall -The meeting reconvened at Village Hall at about 7:30 p.m. 
 
Possible continued discussion and possible actions regarding on site walk – A long 
discussion on was held regarding the 2015 streets resurfacing project and what streets were 
included and which were not and why. There was a long discussion on the amount that could be 
added to the current contract and a review of the state statutes. If the amount was based on the 
signed contract and bid amount the amount would be about $112,000. There was also discussion 
about eliminating planned improvements to the Topping Road/Edgehill intersection. That would 
add another $43,000 to be used elsewhere if deleted, but there was also concern about taking 
away something that might now be expected by residents including the stormwater 
improvements. 
 
The Committee decided that the Village Engineer and Crew Chief should go through the process 
to reassess and rate all the Village streets now and develop cost estimates for resurfacing them. 
The Village Administrator will review financing alternatives, opportunities and constraints. The 
Committee will meet again on May 26 to review the up to date information and recommend any 
changes to the Board based on up to date costs, conditions and financial information  
 
Discuss next steps in public participation process concerning new parking regulations and 
meeting on June 8 – There was nothing new to report. 
 
The meeting was then adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Karl Frantz, Village Administrator 
 



MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
Public Works Committee 
Tuesday, May 26, 2015 – 7:30 P.M. 
Village Hall, 810 Shorewood Boulevard 
 
The meeting was called to called to order at 7:30 p.m. 
Roll call: Public Works Committee members present at the meeting were Chair Mark Lederer, 
Trustee Felice Borisy Rudin, Jim Guither and Chris Petykowski. Others present included, Brian 
Berquist, John Mitmoen, Karl Frantz, Trustee Anne Readel was also in attendance as well as 
residents Monica and Eric Lawson, Geoff and Claudia Werner, Kenneth Shapiro, Tim Rikkers 
and Phyllis Menee. All either living on Blackhawk or Sunset.  
 
Compliance with the open meeting law was noted.  
 
Discussion and possible recommendations regarding the 2015 street improvement project 
and possible revisions to project and scope of work including discussion possible actions on 
current /future projects, budgets and bidding - Chair Mark Lederer opened the meeting and 
set the process to be followed. He then introduced Village Engineer Brian Berquist who provided 
an overview of the project, its purpose and scope and reviewed three documents he provided to 
the Committee and public one at a time. The first was a list of projects in the original bid. The 
second showed a new rank order of streets performed by Brian and John last week that were not 
in the original bid in rank order of need and including cost estimates. The last was a colored map 
showing streets that are included in the 2015 bid and other streets reconstructed or resurfaced 
since 2004. The Committee discussed this and asked questions. They also discussed the 15 % 
limit that this years project could be increased by and element so of the project that could be 
deleted if the wanted to make more room to ad other streets Public was then invited to comment. 
In summary the comments all were focused around a request that Blackhawk and Sunset be 
included in the project this year and some but not all were okay if they knew they would be 
added next year. The project additions are estimated at $134,000.  
 
Residents in the audience spoke in favor of adding Blackhawk and Sunset to the project list.  
 
After discussion and by motion made and seconded committee the recommended unanimously 
that Topping Road, Shady Lane and Blackhawk Drive be added to the resurfacing project in 
2015. The Committee noted they were able to accomplish this and stay within the 15%, $112,000 
additional work contract cap through savings on a section of Edgehill Drive that does not need 
work and should be removed from the original project list. ($28,000) 
 
The Committee also discussed possible additional work in ensuing years and considered a 
motion made by Felice Borisy- Rudin and seconded by Jim Guither informing the Board that the 
Committee would be considering additional work including resurfacing next year in an amount 
that could possibly reach $300,000. That motion failed on a vote of 2-2. Felice and Jim voted in 
favor and Mark and Chris voted no. Those in favor thought it would be a good idea to let the 
Board know now that adding work would likely be recommended with some idea of the outside 
parameters on cost. Those against felt that these matters would surface through the annual 

Page 1 of 2 



Page 2 of 2 

processes of the committee evaluating streets and needed work in the fall and did not want to 
create an expectation now.  
 
Funds for this could be derived from the current borrowing that includes future tax increment 
projects that are at least a year or more off. 
 
The meeting was then adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Karl Frantz 
Village Administrator  
 





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




